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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good afternoon.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.  My name is John Liu.

          5  I have the privilege of chairing this Committee.

          6  We've convened this afternoon for the purpose of

          7  looking at the City's efforts to keep our streets

          8  and sidewalks in a state of good repair.

          9  Maintaining the sidewalks and streets is important,

         10  not only for safety reasons obviously, but also

         11  economic reasons. Businesses cannot thrive if the

         12  streets and sidewalks around them are in disrepair.

         13  Property values will also suffer because of poor

         14  sidewalks and streets.

         15                 As part of this hearing, we will be

         16  looking at three bills related to maintaining the

         17  City's streets and sidewalks. Intro No. 73,

         18  sponsored by Council Member Gerson, would require

         19  the City to perform repairs upon sidewalks that

         20  remain in disrepair 90 days following the issuance

         21  of a Notice of Violation to the responsible property

         22  owner.

         23                 Intro No. 497, also sponsored by

         24  Council Member Gerson, would codify many of the

         25  DOT's mandates related to street plating and

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  decking, would require the permit holder doing the

          3  street work to designate an agent who would be

          4  responsible for supervising and certifying that the

          5  work complies with this law and create a 24- hour

          6  time limit to repair defective plating and to remove

          7  the plating after the completion of the project.

          8                 Intro No. 206, sponsored by Council

          9  Member Felder, would require the party responsible

         10  for a street repair to maintain the repaired portion

         11  of the street until such time the City takes the

         12  street up again.

         13                 I'd like to welcome Council Member

         14  Vincent Ignizio a member of this Committee, and our

         15  colleagues Council Member Alan Gerson and Council

         16  Member Simcha Felder.  We'd like to pass the floor

         17  first to Council Member Alan Gerson for an opening

         18  statement on his two bills and then to Council

         19  Member Simcha Felder for an opening statement on his

         20  bill.  Council Member Gerson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Chair.  As always, thank you for your

         23  leadership, for always being out there and upfront

         24  when it comes to anything related to transportation,

         25  and the time limits of these hearings is just one
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          2  example, and also always being there for other

          3  critical issues beyond transportation.

          4                 Let me also make it clear that I

          5  endorse Council Member Simcha Felder's bill, Intro

          6  206, because, you know, another manifestation of his

          7  wisdom, but I'll let him speak to that.

          8                 I thank DOT of course not only for

          9  being here, but for all the work you've done.  Our

         10  district has kept you quite busy, and we appreciate

         11  the good work that you've done there.

         12                 These bills that I've introduced are

         13  designed to facilitate continuation of the good work

         14  that, in fact, you do do, and I believe the bills

         15  pretty much speak for themselves, and I certainly

         16  will engage in the course of the hearing the

         17  witnesses in dialogue as well as questioning about

         18  the details, but let me just make two points

         19  respectively on the two bills.

         20                 This is not the first hearing we've

         21  had on the issue of metal plates.  Metal plates are

         22  a necessary evil in a city that undergoes ongoing

         23  construction, reconstruction and repair.  We know

         24  that.  The aim is to prevent them from becoming a

         25  safety hazard and from becoming an unacceptable
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          2  disruption to the livability of residents.  Too

          3  often, that is what they are now.

          4                 When metal plates are properly

          5  fastened, and we'll get into the details over the

          6  course of the hearing, are properly installed,

          7  properly baffled with asphalt or when wood plates or

          8  other types of material are used, they perform their

          9  function without creating a safety problem, without

         10  creating disruption. Too often, that is not the

         11  case, and too often, too many residents lives are

         12  disrupted by the continual loud banging and clanging

         13  and this, if anything, understates this continually,

         14  at all hours of the night, time after time, after

         15  time, as one witness, who we'll hear from, told me

         16  when I was talking about this in the hall.  It can

         17  drive you crazy.

         18                 The City adopted a new noise code in

         19  recognition of the seriousness of noise.  It's not

         20  only a quality of life issue, it's a health issue,

         21  it's a basic livability issue.  Metal plates are not

         22  part of the noise code, so they need to be dealt

         23  with this way.  The measures proposed in Intro 497

         24  are common sense measures which will prevent a

         25  situation which I had on Grand Street earlier in the
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          2  year where for weeks  --  I think even a couple of

          3  months -  after completion of the project  --  it

          4  was a Con Edison project --  the plates remained

          5  intact, remained loose.  There was no more work

          6  being done.  The excavation had to be filled in, but

          7  for weeks, going on months, residents could not get

          8  a good night sleep because of the continuation of

          9  that.  A picture is worth multiple words.  Sound

         10  effects  --  So I hope, and I'm open to any proposed

         11  adjustment, technical changes, better ways of

         12  dealing with the situation.  I look forward to

         13  hearing from the experts.  What I am not open to,

         14  and I'll say this at the outset, is denial of the

         15  problem.  I don't want to hear testimony that

         16  everything is currently being done that can and

         17  should be done, that in fact there is no problem,

         18  that the metal plates don't create the disruption,

         19  that they are in and out as quickly as possible, and

         20  they are installed properly because that is just

         21  denying reality. If we can't do better, that also

         22  denies I think the potential of which this City

         23  should be capable of when it comes to safeguarding

         24  our residents.

         25                 The other point about metal plates is
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          2  when they are not properly covered with anti- slip

          3  and when they remain too long, they become a safety

          4  hazard.

          5                 In my district, we had a bicycle

          6  fatality not too long ago precisely because the

          7  bicycle, at West Broadway and Houston Street, was

          8  riding over a wet metal plate and tragically the

          9  bike wheels slipped from under the bicycle and onto

         10  oncoming traffic and that bicycle rider was killed.

         11  Again, those metal plates were there longer than

         12  they had to be.

         13                 On the other bill, Mr. Chair, and

         14  again I thank you for hearing this Intro 73, the

         15  purpose of the bill is to protect -  Did I get the

         16  number right?  I actually did.  Again, common sense.

         17    We have too many sidewalks that are uneven, that

         18  are hazardous.  They are hazardous especially to

         19  people who use canes, who use walkers, who have

         20  other difficulty getting around, or have greater

         21  challenges than many of us getting around.  Property

         22  owners are supposed to take care of their sidewalks,

         23  of course, and we must hold them accountable, but

         24  when they do not, we must not allow a hazardous

         25  situation to continue indefinitely.  Ninety days, if
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          2  anything, is far too long.  If the City has to move

          3  in, as we did recently with hazardous housing, we

          4  need to protect pedestrians, and then go after the

          5  property owners to recover the expense. Again,

          6  common sense, and it shouldn't cost the City any

          7  money because we should be recovering it from the

          8  property owners and if they don't do it, we should

          9  recover it with interest and extra fees.

         10                 So with that, I look forward to the

         11  hearing, and I thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         13  Council Member Gerson.

         14                 We've been joined by Council Member

         15  Oliver Koppell of the Bronx.

         16                 Let me, at this point, turn the floor

         17  over to Council Member Simcha Felder for opening

         18  comments on Intro 206.

         19                 Push the button so the light is on in

         20  this room. It's different from the other room.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I know.

         22  Hello.  Better. Anyway, thank you very much,

         23  Chairman Liu, for holding this hearing on all of the

         24  bills including obviously the ones that Councilman

         25  Gerson mentioned.  I would just add that on
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          2  Councilman Gerson's bill, I don't know whether we

          3  can include it in the same bill, but if possible, on

          4  construction sites, it's very common that once they

          5  start digging, the sidewalks in front of the

          6  construction sites are left unbelievably in

          7  disrepair, and no one can walk by.  It's almost as

          8  though when we started building, and when the

          9  building is over, that's when you'll be able to walk

         10  if, in fact, they get a permit to put up something

         11  in the street for larger construction sites.  Then

         12  you able to walk on those, but on the smaller

         13  construction sites, it's clear that it's a common

         14  practice that people rip up the sidewalks and it

         15  stays that way until the project is over.  So

         16  include it, possibly, Councilman Gerson.  I don't

         17  know if in some way that could be included so that

         18  the construction permits when there are violations

         19   --  It may have to do with Buildings more than DOT.

         20    I'm not sure, but whoever is responsible to make

         21  sure that that doesn't stay that way.

         22                 I thank you people from DOT for

         23  coming today because I think the issue of the

         24  streets being ripped up by  --  I can list the

         25  number of utilities and sometimes even City
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          2  agencies, but certainly utilities.  We just had an

          3  example in my district where --  Thank you for

          4  repaving many of the streets in the district which

          5  needed repaving.  On the same exact date, 48th

          6  Street, 17th and 18th Avenue, on the same exact day

          7  that you repaved it, and it was beautiful.  That

          8  lasted for three hours.  It was done by 12 o'clock.

          9  Three o'clock in the afternoon, I think it was

         10  either Keyspan or Cablevision  --  I don't know who

         11   --  started digging. Maybe it was easier for them,

         12  but there's something outrageous about two things.

         13  Really it's about responsibility and an

         14  accountability in how the City goes about keeping an

         15  inventory on the streets that it paves.  That you

         16  obviously have the information for, but how it keeps

         17  all of these utilities and the cable companies

         18  honest, and when they do repair it, they don't

         19  usually repair it properly.

         20                 There's another bill that has been

         21  sponsored by Councilman Oddo that would call for

         22  curb to curb repairs, which I am very, very much in

         23  favor of, which should be added to this.  So that

         24  when companies do rip up the street, they have to

         25  know they are going to have to fix it from curb to
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          2  curb so that you don't find these indentations after

          3  a while.

          4                 I just want to thank the Chair for

          5  holding this hearing at this time, and I look

          6  forward to the informative discussion.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          8  Council Member Felder.  It's now our pleasure to

          9  invite for their testimony First Deputy Commissioner

         10  of the New York City Department of Transportation

         11  Lori Ardito  --  welcome  --  Leon Heyward, Deputy

         12  Commissioner at the Department of Transportation;

         13  our buddy, David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner of the

         14  DOT.  I look forward to some of his testimony today,

         15  as always.

         16                 I want to thank the staff of the

         17  Transportation Committee, Phil Ham, our Legislative

         18  Counsel, Ron Kim, our Policy Analyst, and Chima

         19  Obichere, our Finance Analyst for their work in

         20  putting this hearing together.  And what the heck,

         21  let me thank Matt Gorman from the Mayor's Office for

         22  helping us make sure that this hearing goes off

         23  smoothly.  Everybody else who has been helpful in

         24  this hearing, thanks very much.  We're going to have

         25  a great hearing.
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          2                 At this point, our First Deputy

          3  Commissioner Lori Ardito, welcome.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          5  Good afternoon, Chairman Liu and the members of the

          6  Committee on Transportation. My name is Lori Ardito,

          7  and I am the First Deputy Commissioner of the

          8  Department of Transportation.  With me here today is

          9  Leon Heyward, DOT's Deputy Commissioner for Sidewalk

         10  and Inspection Management and David Woloch, DOT's

         11  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs.  I am

         12  happy to be hear this afternoon to discuss the three

         13  items on today's agenda.  Intros 73, 206 and 497 all

         14  address issues related to responsible and diligent

         15  sidewalk and roadway repair.

         16                 Before we address these bills, let me

         17  first share with you our recent efforts to keep our

         18  City's streets and sidewalks in a state of good

         19  repair.

         20                 DOT's Roadway Repair and Maintenance

         21  division oversees the resurfacing and roadway

         22  maintenance programs of our City's vast network of

         23  roads.  We conduct extensive milling and paving

         24  operations, the digging up of damaged or uneven

         25  pavement and laying of new asphalt in its place.
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          2  These operations must continually keep pace with the

          3  wear of daily travel in order to maintain the

          4  quality of our streets.

          5                 Resurfacing efforts are critical as

          6  we look ahead to the future where the City's

          7  population is expected to grow and our

          8  infrastructure will continue to age.  This

          9  Administration is committed to pursuing a state of

         10  good repair for our 20,000 lane miles of City

         11  streets.

         12                 Over the past two years, we have

         13  increased our funding for resurfacing by nearly 30

         14  percent, raising the annual resurfacing target from

         15  approximately 700 to 900 lane miles.  DOT's Capital

         16  Commitment Plan for Fiscal Year 2008 through 2017

         17  provides for 9,000 lane miles of streets to be

         18  resurfaced, which is an increase of 1,450 lane miles

         19  from the previous Plan.  Also, the Smart Fund in the

         20  Mayor's PlaNYC proposes $120 million in added

         21  funding, which would allow us to raise the target

         22  even further.

         23                 Unfortunately, it is impossible to

         24  resurface all of our streets every year.  We also

         25  have to focus on more routine maintenance.  When
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          2  Mayor Bloomberg first took office in January 2002,

          3  DOT's response to pothole complaints stood at 70

          4  percent of reported conditions repaired in 30 days

          5  or less.  Since then, pothole response has improved

          6  dramatically.  In Fiscal Year 2007, although the

          7  number of pothole complaints had more than doubled,

          8  DOT's 30- day response was almost 100 percent.

          9                 Beyond normal wear and tear, there

         10  are many challenges to maintaining our City's

         11  streets.  At the same time that DOT is repaving and

         12  repairing the roadways, utilities, plumbers,

         13  contractors, other governmental agencies and

         14  property owners all make street cuts and excavations

         15  in the course of the business for work on

         16  infrastructure that lies beneath the streets. It is

         17  our job to address, as best we can, any adverse

         18  effects this work may have.

         19                 We have an entire Highway Inspection

         20  and Quality Assurance Unit, also know as HIQA,

         21  dedicated to maintaining the integrity of our

         22  streets, increasing the level of safety for all

         23  users or our roadways, and expediting the flow of

         24  traffic, for both pedestrians and vehicles around

         25  construction.  HIQA accomplishes this by enforcing
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          2  the laws and rules that govern the way work is done

          3  on the City's sidewalks, roadways and highways.

          4  Inspectors also review work sites for compliance

          5  with permit stipulations, and issue violations when

          6  they find non- compliance with the laws and rules.

          7  To carry out its mission, HIQA employs staff

          8  throughout the five boroughs.

          9                 Over the past two years, DOT has

         10  reduced the effects of illegal and inappropriate

         11  work on our roads through the implementation of Take

         12  Back the Streets.  This initiative has enabled us to

         13  more aggressively police contractors who work on

         14  City streets.  Working will our colleagues at DOB,

         15  DEP, ECB and DOF, we took a three- fold approach to

         16  enforcing compliance.

         17                 First, we refuse permits to

         18  contractors with the most egregious outstanding

         19  fines.  Second, we refuse permits to contractors who

         20  have left their sites in disrepair until they repair

         21  the site to our satisfaction.  Third, DOF has been

         22  collecting assets from contractors who have serious

         23  outstanding fines and continue to work on our

         24  streets without a permit.

         25                 We have been successful.  Since
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          2  January of 2006, DOF has collected over $2 million

          3  dollars from 74 of these contractors. DOT has

          4  suspended permit issuance to 75 companies who have

          5  failed to make payments.  We have also enhanced our

          6  inspections.  DOT's construction and inspection unit

          7  has hired additional inspectors, almost doubling

          8  field forces from 83 inspectors to 161.  This has

          9  allowed us to assign one inspector in each borough

         10  to follow the contractors paving trucks to make sure

         11  that the materials used for the base and final

         12  restoration of the cuts meets DOT standards.

         13                 As well as ensuring a state of good

         14  repair on our roads, we're also committed to the

         15  maintenance of our sidewalks. Whether we drive or

         16  take transit, work here or are just visiting, every

         17  day almost everyone in the City travels our

         18  sidewalks, and there are approximately 674 million

         19  square feet of sidewalk City wide.  While DOT is

         20  responsible for inspecting work performed on these

         21  sidewalks, the New York City Charter and

         22  Administrative Code have always provided that

         23  property owners are responsible for repairing and

         24  maintaining the sidewalk adjacent to their property.

         25  Given the number of sidewalks in the City and the
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          2  Agency's constraints, it is incumbent on the

          3  property owner to bear responsibility for the

          4  sidewalk abutting their property.

          5                 When they fail to do so, and DOT is

          6  forced to make a repair, a cost is imposed on the

          7  taxpayer.  Although the City charges the property

          8  owner with interest, the cost often is not

          9  immediately recouped and there are still additional

         10  costs associated with the work.

         11                 As you know, in 2003 the Council

         12  passed Intro 193, which made four- plus- family and

         13  commercial property owners liable for injuries

         14  caused by sidewalk defects that they know about and

         15  fail to repair.  Imposing responsibility on those

         16  who own commercial properties or multiple residents

         17  where most side walks take place remains the best

         18  way to have a safer City.  There is no doubt that it

         19  is physically, financially and practically

         20  impossible for DOT to fix all 12,000 miles of

         21  sidewalks, ever in our lifetime.

         22                 Since the passage of this

         23  legislation, DOT's Office of Sidewalk Management has

         24  been better able to concentrate its efforts on

         25  repairing City- owned properties.  Let me take a
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          2  moment to briefly describe how our sidewalk program

          3  works.  DOT places bid, via the Department of Design

          4  and Construction, seven sidewalk repair contracts

          5  annually.  Sidewalk repair contractors are then

          6  assigned to community boards based on the number of

          7  eligible violations issued to the community boards

          8  that were not addressed under recent repair

          9  contracts and City- owned properties in need of

         10  sidewalk repair.

         11                 On average, we repair sidewalks in

         12  two to four community boards per borough every year.

         13    DOT has $20 million dollars allocated annually for

         14  these operations.  From Fiscal Year '04 to Fiscal

         15  Year '08, DOT has repaired sidewalks on 691 City

         16  owned properties for a total of $51.3 million

         17  dollars.  This includes over 300 schools, 130 parks,

         18  30 HPD and 19 NYCHA properties.

         19                 As school safety is a major priority

         20  of the Agency, in Fiscal Year '07, $6.2 million

         21  dollars was spent repairing 67 Department of

         22  Education facilities.  A Citywide sidewalk contract

         23  for $4.5 million was registered and awarded in 2006

         24  to address safety locations Citywide.  We have also

         25  hired five new inspectors that have been assigned to
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          2  addressing 311 complaints.

          3                 Between our sidewalk program, street

          4  reconstruction and enforcement initiatives targeting

          5  work being done on City streets, DOT is working

          6  aggressively to meet the many demands on our street

          7  infrastructure.

          8                 Now that you have some insight into

          9  our current operations, let me turn to the bills.

         10                 Intro 73 requires that all sidewalk

         11  reinstallations, reconstruction, repaving or repairs

         12  to an existing sidewalk flag must be completed by

         13  DOT if not undertaken by the responsible property

         14  owner within 90 days following the issuance of a

         15  Notice of Violation, or otherwise known as NOV.

         16                 To grasp the implications of this

         17  bill, it is important to understand DOT's current

         18  practice.  In the past year, DOT has received over

         19  6,000 sidewalk complaints.  Each location alleging a

         20  defective sidewalk is inspected within 15 business

         21  days. Where defects are found, an NOV is issued to

         22  the property owner. The property owner then has 45

         23  days to address the defect.  Should they choose not

         24  to, this bill shifts the burden back on the City to

         25  make the repair.  And although the bill gives DOT 90
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          2  days from the issuance of the NOV to make the

          3  repair, in fact it will only amount to 45, as the

          4  owner first has 45 days after the NOV is issued to

          5  perform the work.

          6                 The time frame specified in Intro 73

          7  presents a mandate the City could not fulfill.

          8  First, the cost to the Agency to maintain every

          9  sidewalk Citywide within 45 days would be

         10  astronomical.

         11                 In 2003, the Council passed

         12  legislation rightfully acknowledging the capacity of

         13  the Agency and existing law, which transferred

         14  obligation to owners of four- plus properties.  By

         15  requiring DOT to address repairs at these locations,

         16  Intro 73 would veer away from the very legislation

         17  that unburdened the Agency of responsibility over

         18  those sidewalks.

         19                 In addition to expanding the scope of

         20  our operations, the 45- day deadline to perform

         21  repairs makes the cost compliance prohibitively

         22  expensive.  The cost of our contracts would

         23  skyrocket.  Instead of bidding out seven large

         24  contracts each year covering the City, we would have

         25  to bid out several small contracts in each borough.
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          2  Currently, what keeps the costs down is the

          3  clustering of repairs based on location.  It is far

          4  more efficient for the contractors to go out and

          5  perform repairs in one community board.  In order to

          6  meet the new deadline, they would have to go out to

          7  scattered locations.  We estimate the inefficiency

          8  in operation will result in a $99 million dollar

          9  cost versus the $20 million in our current capital

         10  program.

         11                 If we continue to address City- owned

         12  properties at an annual cost of $14 million, our

         13  projected annual budget will be $133 million

         14  annually.  Additionally, we estimate staffing

         15  increases of at least five inspectors, five clerical

         16  workers and three construction project managers,

         17  accruing a cost of over $930,000 annually.

         18                 Further, contractors cannot perform

         19  work in the winter months due to freezing and other

         20  weather conditions that prevent City contractors

         21  from making repairs.  As our operations are only in

         22  effect seven month a year, depending on when a

         23  complaint is reported, it may be impossible to meet

         24  the deadline.

         25                 In addition to incurring high costs,
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          2  the 45- day frame required in Intro 73 will

          3  encourage property owners to shirk responsibility

          4  for repairs, as the know if they just wait, the City

          5  will make them.

          6                 Simply put, under no circumstance

          7  could the Agency assume responsibility over

          8  approximately 12,750 miles of sidewalk Citywide.  To

          9  give you a better sense, our sidewalks, if laid end

         10  to end, would cover half the Earth's circumference.

         11  The cost and inefficiency associated with Intro 73

         12  are just too great.  Placing this burden on DOT,

         13  rather than properly keeping it distributed among

         14  the many property owners Citywide, will not result

         15  in efficient or equitable results.  These repairs

         16  will need to be funded, and that exorbitant cost

         17  will be felt by all taxpayers spread throughout the

         18  City.

         19                 Unlike Intro 73, Intros 206 and 497

         20  do not impose any additional costs or burdens to the

         21  City.  They address irresponsible work being

         22  performed on our City streets.  Given our efforts to

         23  make certain quality work is being done on our

         24  sidewalks and roads, we are pleased to see the

         25  Council focused on this issue, though we are not
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          2  convinced either bill is necessary.

          3                 Intro 206 requires the party that

          4  digs up a street to restore and maintain it until

          5  the City resurfaces or constructs it again.

          6  Existing law mandates that the party responsible for

          7  digging up a street repair, repair it.  However,

          8  they are only charged with maintaining it for three

          9  to five years.  On a non protected street, which is

         10  a street not resurfaced or reconstructed by DOT in

         11  the last five years, permittees are responsible for

         12  maintaining the cut for three years after the permit

         13  expires.  On protected streets, which is a street

         14  that has been resurfaced and/or reconstructed in the

         15  last five years, the permittee is responsible for

         16  maintaining the cut for the balance of the

         17  protection period, or three years after the permit

         18  expires, whichever is longer.

         19                 Our time frames for maintenance exist

         20  to guarantee work is done correctly.  Intro 206

         21  proposes an extension of this period which would

         22  impose large and potentially unnecessary costs on

         23  contractors and property owners.  Conversely, it

         24  will relieve certain parties of their existing

         25  responsibilities as the City may take up a street in
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          2  advance of the minimum period they are currently

          3  responsible for.

          4                 However, we have taken the

          5  recommendation under advisement.  DOT has recently

          6  been working with EDC to initiate a study in order

          7  to determine best practices for restoring street

          8  cuts.  The purpose is to look at our practices,

          9  practices of other locales and the engineering

         10  behind our current procedures in order to assess

         11  what improvements should be made.  We request the

         12  Council wait until it is complete so that we can

         13  determine whether requirements of the bill are

         14  appropriate.

         15                 In another effort to guarantee safe

         16  and efficient repair of our streets, Intro 497

         17  outlines certain requirements for permittees during

         18  street openings and excavations.  It mandates that

         19  the installation of plating and decking over street

         20  openings be securely placed to create a minimum

         21  amount of noise; that the permittee certifies that

         22  the plating and decking was properly installed; and

         23  institutes penalties for non- compliance.

         24                 Additionally, it requires notices

         25  with permittee's name and phone number to be posted
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          2  within a one- block radius of the project and upon

          3  receiving a complaint, they must repair any defect

          4  within 24 hours.  It also mandates that all plating

          5  and decking must be removed and the street repaired

          6  within 24 hours of completion of the project.

          7                 Although the aim of the bill is

          8  commendable, we believe our current operation not

          9  only satisfies the requirements, but far exceeds

         10  them.  Existing DOT highway rules make the permittee

         11  responsible for the safety and securing of the

         12  plating and decking, and grant DOT enforcement

         13  capabilities to make sure these rules are followed.

         14                 Section 2- 11 of DOT's rules already

         15  require the securing and ramping of the plating and

         16  decking and require the permittee to install and

         17  fasten the plates that is safe and adequate to carry

         18  the load of vehicles and requires the size of the

         19  plating be large enough to span the opening and be

         20  sufficiently ramped.

         21                 Further than what is required in

         22  Intro 497, the rules require that plating and

         23  decking have a skid- resistant surface to give

         24  bicyclists and pedestrians additional traction as

         25  they cross over them.
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          2                 Also, in the winter months,

          3  permittees must post signs to warn snow plow

          4  operators that a metal plate lies ahead. This

          5  reduces the likelihood that plates are inadvertently

          6  moved by a snow plow in times of bad weather.

          7                 In addition to more rigorous

          8  standards for plating and decking, our penalties are

          9  far stricter for a first violation in comparison to

         10  the proposed legislation.  In 2003, when a hearing

         11  was held on a previous version of this bill, Intro

         12  226, Deputy Commissioner David Woloch testified that

         13  we were contemplating increasing the fine, which at

         14  the time was $400 dollars, and we have.  While the

         15  bill only calls for a $250 dollar initial fine, the

         16  current ECB fine schedule provides for a $1,200

         17  dollar fine for each failure to pin and ramp plates.

         18    Failure to have a skid resistant surface renders a

         19  $1,000 dollar fine.

         20                 One thing the current law does not

         21  incorporate is a repeat offender clause because this

         22  is problematic from an adjudication standpoint.

         23  Before a violation could be issued in an amount

         24  double the previous violation, the first violation

         25  would first need to be adjudicated.
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          2                 However, the adjudication process at

          3  the Environmental Control Board takes approximately

          4  60 to 90 days per violation.  This is too long of a

          5  period to wait before being able to issue another

          6  violation, and in many cases, the street work will

          7  have been completed and the contractor will have

          8  moved on.  Under current practice, we continue to

          9  issue a violation to the permittee each day that the

         10  situation is not rectified.

         11                 Finally, I would like to address the

         12  requirement of Intro 497, which mandates that

         13  complaints must be addressed within 24 hours.

         14  Currently, complaints are fielded through 311.  DOT

         15  has staff available 24/7 to contact the permittee

         16  once a complaint is made.  We do this particularly

         17  because, in order to ensure safety, these complaints

         18  need to be addressed as soon as possible.  For that

         19  reason, the component of the bill which gives

         20  permittees 24 hours to respond is problematic.  As I

         21  said, when complaints are made, depending on the

         22  condition reported, they may need to be addressed

         23  immediately.  Twenty- four hours is too long to wait

         24  to address conditions that may be dangerous.

         25                 In sum, as well- intentioned as Intro
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          2  206 and 497 are, our current operations are

          3  sufficient for safe, responsible and efficient

          4  street maintenance.

          5                 As we look toward a sustainable

          6  future, maintaining a good repair for our City's

          7  vast network of streets and sidewalks is a major

          8  priority for the Agency and the Administration.

          9                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         10  testify before you today, and I would be happy any

         11  questions at this time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         13  First Deputy Commissioner.  Boy am I surprised to

         14  hear that you believe this proposed legislation is

         15  not necessary.  You had to put that in there.

         16  Right, David?  I'm just kidding around.  Come on.

         17  It's a Wednesday afternoon here, and the air

         18  conditioning is kind of weak today.  No one expected

         19  it to be 90 degrees outside.

         20                 Getting back to the business at hand,

         21  obviously there is some sentiment of disagreement

         22  with one of your closing statements, Deputy

         23  Commissioner, that the DOT's current operations are

         24  sufficient for safe, responsible and efficient

         25  street maintenance.  It's because of that
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          2  disagreement, that our esteemed colleagues, Council

          3  Member Felder and Gerson, have put forth these

          4  pieces of legislation.  So we have a number of

          5  questions.

          6                 I always appreciate the thoroughness

          7  with which the Department of Transportation analyzes

          8  our proposed legislation. That's always appreciated.

          9    Some of the real technical disagreements, or where

         10  you say that it doesn't work, we can always work

         11  that out, but the main intent of the bills deserve a

         12  great of attention in this body.  They certainly

         13  have gotten a lot of attention in the public

         14  already.

         15                 Before I ask my first question, let

         16  me acknowledge that we've been joined by Council

         17  Member Joe Addabbo from Queens, Council Member

         18  Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn.  Let me also note that

         19  Council Member Miguel Martinez, a member of the

         20  Committee, is not here right now because he is

         21  charged with chairing a Committee hearing across the

         22  street in the Committee Room.

         23                 Your main opposition with being

         24  charged with repairing sidewalks is the cost, but

         25  the basic thrust of the bill says that look if

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  people don't fix sidewalks that they break up within

          3  a reasonable amount of time then the Department

          4  should just go ahead and repair the sidewalk and

          5  then send the bill for the cost of that work to

          6  whoever it is that broke up the sidewalk.  Now I

          7  understand there could be some collection problems,

          8  but at the end of the day if you're saying that if

          9  those bills are really largely uncollectible then

         10  that's a question of cost to the City. If the City

         11  is able to collect on a large number of those fines

         12  or bills for work performed then it's not really a

         13  cost to taxpayers. It just requires more astute

         14  attention on the part of the Department of

         15  Transportation.  So is it really a cost objection?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         17  Again, the way that it would be a cost objection is

         18  that in order for us to accomplish the 90- day

         19  cycle, we would then have to put out smaller

         20  contracts which would increase the costs per square

         21  foot.  So there would be an additional cost, and we

         22  would not be able to recoup everything once we go

         23  out to a property.  I mean we could only recoup the

         24  flags that are hazardous and dangerous and are the

         25  property owners, but then we do additional work

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  around that property that we don't recoup.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you're saying

          4  that the impact of this bill would magnify the

          5  City's sidewalk repair costs by five times, from $20

          6  million to essentially $100 million dollars. That's

          7  what your testimony  --

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          9  Correct.  Per square foot, it goes from $8 dollars

         10  to $27 dollars per square foot.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, and that's

         12  solely because we're accelerating and making more

         13  frequent the number of contracts that are being put

         14  out there?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I'm

         16  going to turn it over to Mr. Heyward.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please identify

         18  yourself for the record, Mr. Heyward.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: Leon

         20  Heyward.  It has a lot to do with the way the

         21  contractor will now have to work. Presently, the

         22  contracts that we have in place, the contractor

         23  knows he is going to work in two or three community

         24  boards.  The work that we give him, we cluster them.

         25    Under this law, we would not be able to cluster
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          2  the work in the same manner.  Now, because we would

          3  have to respond in 90 days, I could have a guy go

          4  all over the place.  So he would be scattered

          5  throughout the borough. Knowing that, a contractor

          6  has to think of what it's going to cost him to pick

          7  up his equipment and move all the way uptown and

          8  then move back downtown.  So every time he does

          9  that, he's going to charge us to move his equipment.

         10    Whereas in the current contracts, he can set up a

         11  space and then he can easily go to all the locations

         12  because we try our best to cluster.  Our experience

         13  has been that our costs increase the more travel

         14  time a contractor has to take on.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.  I mean you

         16  would still be able to cluster work.  You just would

         17  be in, presumably, smaller, or I guess what you're

         18  saying much smaller clusters.  Let's then talk about

         19  the way you do this now.  How long does it generally

         20  take for these clusters to be contracted out and the

         21  work completed?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         23  Well as I said in my testimony, we generally get to

         24  two to four community boards per borough, per year.

         25  So it would generally take several years for us to
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          2  get back around.  Of course in Brooklyn and Queens

          3  more community boards so.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So say someone calls

          5  and makes a complaint.  It's no longer called DOT.

          6  Everyone calls 311.  They make a complaint about the

          7  sidewalk conditions being horrendous, and we know

          8  that it's because a contractor left a very poor

          9  condition.  So that New Yorker is, in many cases,

         10  required to wait a couple of years, sometimes a few

         11  years, before the City gets around to requiring that

         12  repair work be done?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         14  Well, again, you're referring to if a contractor

         15  digs up the street.  I mean, again, that is a little

         16  different.  A contractor comes, digs up somebody's

         17  sidewalk, makes an inappropriate repair.  We have

         18  some summonsing issues to the contractor.  I mean

         19  through our HIQA Unit, we would look up who the

         20  permittee is.  We would then issue them violations,

         21  and we would get them to make the repair on the

         22  sidewalk, if we're talking about contractors.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So then the

         24  question is if 90 days is just too difficult, is any

         25  stipulation of a time period going to be onerous for
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          2  the Department to deal with?  Maybe we could

          3  consider some other time frame, but it just seems

          4  like it has to be more frequent, or people shouldn't

          5  have to wait a couple of years, or a few years for

          6  their sidewalk to be repaired whether it be due to a

          7  contractor or for other reasons.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          9  Again, maybe we can have a dialogue about time

         10  frames, but based on this bill, 90 days seems to be

         11  onerous and obviously expensive to the City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that's the main

         13  objection. That's the 90 days that's escalating the

         14  cost to the tune of five times, but if there was a

         15  different time frame, maybe something more

         16  reasonable, but maybe something quicker than what

         17  the Department of Transportation is accustomed to

         18  doing up to today.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         20  Again, based on our funding, yes, accustomed to what

         21  we're doing  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but we're

         23  saying  --

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         25  That's all based on our funding.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  We saying you

          3  can bill the costs out to the property owner, so

          4  that's not a question of funding.  That's just a

          5  question of priority level of the Department.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: It

          7  assumes that the responsibility is then back on the

          8  City.  Currently, the law assumes the responsibility

          9  is of the property owner.  This puts the

         10  responsibility back on the City for a tighter time

         11  frame.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So even though the

         13  bill says specifically that the liability does not

         14  revert back to the City, you're saying that as a

         15  matter of course, it would imply that the City is

         16  once again assuming the liability for that broken

         17  sidewalk?

         18                 Dave, feel free, and please identify

         19  yourself for the record.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: David

         21  Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs.

         22  It's not a question of the liability.  It's just

         23  that it puts the obligation on us, and if there's a

         24  time frame, as Deputy Commissioner Heyward

         25  described, it constrains our contractors in terms of
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          2  flexibility.  Whatever that time limit is, there is

          3  going to be some degree of chasing of where the

          4  violations are, and the reality is that has to get

          5  paid for. Some of that we recoup, but not all of

          6  that.  So the dollars is an important piece of it,

          7  but the other issue, which First Deputy Commissioner

          8  Ardito referred to in her testimony, is that right

          9  now based on the law that the Council worked so hard

         10  on putting in place a few years ago for the four

         11  pluses and commercial properties there is an

         12  obligation that's clearly on those property owners.

         13  This seems to take a step in a different direction.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well I would prefer

         15  not to have heard that part because when we passed

         16  the law commonly known as our form of tort reform a

         17  few years ago, which this body did support in

         18  conjunction with the Department of Transportation

         19  and Corp Council's Office and the Mayor's Office, we

         20  were very happy and supportive of that proposal, but

         21  we said always from day one that shifting the

         22  liability was always meant to really strongly

         23  encourage, incentivize or require the property

         24  owners to do the repairs themselves, but it does not

         25  absolve the City, specifically the Department of
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          2  Transportation, from any responsibility of just

          3  keeping the sidewalks of this City in good repair.

          4  So when you say --  I'm pretty sure this is what you

          5  said  --  that the Department just doesn't like to

          6  have this kind of time frame because then it almost

          7  puts the responsibility for repairing the sidewalks

          8  back on us.  I don't think it really does.  I think

          9  that the owners would still rather do it themselves.

         10    They could do it much cheaper than if the

         11  Department of Transportation or the City of New York

         12  billed them for that work.  So there still is great

         13  incentive for them to do it on their own, but the

         14  notion of the Department of Transportation not

         15  having any responsibility for making sure the

         16  sidewalks are actually kept in good repair whether

         17  they do it themselves, whether the Department does

         18  it itself, or whether it requires other people to do

         19  it on a timely basis.  The notion that the DOT

         20  doesn't have that responsibility is ludicrous.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: That's

         22  not what we're suggesting.  We're not suggesting  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that's

         24  exactly what  --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: No, what
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          2  we're suggesting is we don't want the cost to the

          3  taxpayer, and the cost to the property owners, to go

          4  up, which is what would happen, and we don't want to

          5  absolve property owners of their obligation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  No more

          7  questions.  Let me defer to some of my colleagues.

          8  Council Member Koppell.

          9                 We've been joined by Council Member

         10  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan and Council Member

         11  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.  I don't know.  The Chairman is 100

         14  percent correct in what he was just saying and

         15  perhaps you didn't understand it.  The law, and I

         16  was very much involved in the law in 2003.  I know

         17  that subject well.  I was an advocate essentially of

         18  that approach in the legislature before I came to

         19  the City Council.  It has absolutely nothing

         20  directly to do with this mandate.  That law said

         21  that property owners, that is larger property

         22  owners, are responsible for the consequences of not

         23  repairing the sidewalk.  If there's an injury,

         24  they're responsible for compensating the person

         25  injured. Until that law was passed, the City was
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          2  responsible.  That shifted the responsibility to the

          3  property owners.  As the Chairman quite properly

          4  pointed out, that was an incentive for property

          5  owners to fix the sidewalks.  Unfortunately, it's

          6  probably not enough of an incentive because they

          7  still don't fix them.

          8                 The property owner was always

          9  responsible for fixing the sidewalks under the

         10  Administrative Code, and it remains responsible.

         11  The City always had the right, if the person didn't

         12  fix it, to come in and fix it and charge the

         13  property owners.  That didn't change by that law in

         14  2003.  Nothing changed with respect to what we're

         15  talking about here other than we created an

         16  incentive for the property owner to fix the

         17  sidewalk.  Unfortunately, apparently, it's not

         18  enough of an incentive.

         19                 So let's get to this.  Let's not talk

         20  about the 2003 law because it has nothing to do this

         21  in essence.  What this says is that the City is not

         22  acting quickly enough to fix the sidewalks and then

         23  bill the property owner.  Now you say if we force

         24  you to act more quickly, it's going to cost the City

         25  money.  The only time it going to cost the City
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          2  money is if the City doesn't collect because they

          3  are entitled to collect.  If there are ancillary

          4  costs that are not collectible, maybe we should

          5  change the law and make the property owner

          6  responsible for those ancillary costs.

          7                 Now there are some properties in

          8  areas of the City where the properties are going

          9  into foreclosure and stuff where maybe the City

         10  can't collect.  If you say, well we can't collect in

         11  every case because some of the property is not

         12  responsible because it's in foreclosure or in tax

         13  arrears or whatever, I understand that, but most of

         14  the City is not in that state.  Thank goodness. In

         15  fact, property values have gone up in most of the

         16  City.

         17                 So what the Chairman said is

         18  absolutely right.  It only costs the City more

         19  money, with the exception of those areas I just

         20  mentioned, where the City is not diligent in going

         21  against the property.  You get a lien against this

         22  property.  It's not that you have to chase after.

         23  That's a lien on the property, and if the property

         24  owner doesn't pay, you can foreclose and take the

         25  property away from them.  If you're not charging the
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          2  full cost, and if there are more costs because they

          3  have to do it more quickly, so be it. Those costs

          4  should be passed on to the property owner.  The

          5  whole idea of this law is that the property owner

          6  should make the repair. Maybe if they know that the

          7  City is going to charge them an arm and a leg,

          8  they'll make the repair more quickly.  So I largely

          9  discount, frankly  --  and I'd ask you why I'm wrong

         10  in what I'm saying  --  I largely discount your

         11  argument about increased costs. The only place where

         12  it's going to be increased costs is where the

         13  property owner doesn't pay.  Where the property

         14  owner doesn't pay, in most cases, you have a remedy.

         15    What's wrong with that argument?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: There's

         17  two parts to the costs.  It's the recoupment issues

         18  which you cite, but there are also other costs that

         19  the Department incurs that we're not necessarily

         20  going to get reimbursed for.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What are

         22  they, please?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: The

         24  administration of the program.  Presently the

         25  inspectors and the office staff that processes all
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          2  the Notice of Violations, those are not totally part

          3  of the costs, and then we also have, because our

          4  contracts are administered by DDC, we have those

          5  costs that are also there that we don't all get back

          6  from  --  Also, when I go to a property, I look and

          7  I'm looking at where my trip hazards are.  So if a

          8  property has let's say ten flags on it, I see four

          9  flags that I need to replace.  When I go to that

         10  property and I have to construct, I may have to take

         11  up six or seven flags which I do not charge the

         12  property owner for.

         13                 In addition, if there is some other

         14  City facility that are out there, if there is a fire

         15  hydrant, a street light or something that there's a

         16  break on, I do not charge that property owner for

         17  that flag also.  So there are some accessible costs

         18  on just about every property we go to that the

         19  property owner will not be charged 100 percent.

         20                 So our concern is that although the

         21  property owner may get charged the bulk, there is

         22  still a piece that the City will be responsible for

         23  and because these contracts are now going to be

         24  higher, more inefficient, the square foot is going

         25  to be higher, that means our costs will be even
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          2  greater than they were under the previous contracts

          3  that we have.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          5  I'm not going to ask another question.  What I would

          6  recommend though is if these costs, and they sound

          7  to me like most of these costs are related to the

          8  need to repair the property, if we have to change

          9  the law to expand what the City can charge for  --

         10  Because remember if the property owner fixes it

         11  themselves, the City is not going to charge them

         12  anything.  That's their responsibility under the

         13  law.  It's always been their responsibility under

         14  the law for 50 years.  So if there's more costs that

         15  is going to burden the City and we have to change

         16  the law on that, if they can't do it

         17  administratively, let's really take every penny that

         18  this costs.  The City should be reimbursed by the

         19  property owner because they can get out of paying it

         20  by just making the repair which they're legally

         21  responsible to do.

         22                 So what I would recommend is that we

         23  deal with this objection by looking at the law and

         24  seeing if we maybe should charge the property owner

         25  a little bit more.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          3  Council Member Koppell.  We've been joined by

          4  Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn.

          5                 Let me just note that the

          6  Administrative Code that is City law already allows

          7  the City, in this case the Department of

          8  Transportation, to charge up to 20 percent more than

          9  the bill for the purposes of recouping

         10  administrative costs.  So it would appear then that

         11  Mr. Heyward and the Department of Transportation is

         12  saying that it actually would cost more than 20

         13  percent over the cost of the repairs whether they be

         14  expedited or otherwise, and that that is an unfair

         15  cost for City taxpayers to bear.

         16                 This would not be the first hearing

         17  where the Department of Transportation has agreed

         18  with the intent of our legislation, but disagreed on

         19  the necessity because of the costs that the

         20  Department of Transportation would have to bear.

         21  Well let me again remind you that there's a

         22  budgetary process, and if the Department of

         23  Transportation can't do its job within the confines

         24  of its budget then we should talk about it at budget

         25  time.

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 The reason why our colleagues,

          3  Council Member Felder and Council Member Gerson and

          4  a number of us, have signed on to these bills is

          5  because there is a need out there on the streets and

          6  sidewalks of New York City.  People are not happy

          7  with the condition of the sidewalks and the length

          8  of time it takes for these sidewalk repairs to be

          9  undertaken.

         10                 Now if it actually will cost the City

         11  a little bit more money to make sure that we get the

         12  sidewalks in good order, in a reasonable period of

         13  time, more reasonable in the eyes of many of the

         14  constituents that we represent, then so be it.  I

         15  would encourage you not to come here and start

         16  testifying or suggesting that our bill is going to

         17  increase costs for City taxpayers by five times.

         18  That is just plain ludicrous.

         19                 I want to move on to other questions,

         20  and we have discussions on the other two bills too

         21  which I think there will be a significant amount of

         22  discussion.  I have questions from Council Member

         23  Lappin, and then Gerson and Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.  I wanted to ask a question more relating
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          2  to the oversight topic of this hearing than one of

          3  the particular pieces of legislation and relating to

          4  curb cuts because it's my understanding that

          5  Disabled in Action says that there are about 51,000

          6  sidewalk corners in the City that lack curb cuts.  I

          7  hear very often from constituents about the lack of

          8  curb cuts either because they're disabled or they

          9  are trying to maneuver with a baby carriage.  So I

         10  wanted to ask. I think that DOT has allocated $20

         11  million dollars towards improving accessibility on

         12  the sidewalks, but what's the plan? Where are you

         13  going to implement that?  How are you choosing to

         14  spend the money?  Where are you going to spend the

         15  money?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: Once

         17  again, Leon Heyward.  We allocate approximately $20

         18  million dollars a year, and we've done so for the

         19  past six years, and we will continue to do so for

         20  the next  --  and I guess according to the lawsuit,

         21  until it takes  --  and put curb cuts at every

         22  corner.

         23                 So what we've done so far is

         24  presently we are about 72 percent of the City has

         25  been ramped with ped ramps, and we are now winding
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          2  down to the ramps that are left mostly are the ramps

          3  that are what we consider complicated or hard to do.

          4    What those ramps are is at a corner where the ramp

          5  should be there's a street light, there's a tree,

          6  there's a subway, there's a catch basin. Those, at

          7  the very beginning, we said going to save those for

          8  last. We're going to do all the simple ones first,

          9  which we're doing and we have another two years to

         10  complete all the simple, and then, although we have

         11  already begun, begin to do the ones that are hard to

         12  do.  The ones that are hard to do are also much more

         13  expensive than the simple ramps.  So for the past

         14  five, six, seven years we have spent about $20

         15  million dollars a year, somewhere in that ballpark,

         16  to go out and install ramps throughout the City.

         17                 Presently, we are about 80 percent in

         18  Manhattan, 80 or so percent in Brooklyn.  In the

         19  Bronx, we're probably high 70's. In Queens, we're

         20  high 70's, and in Staten Island we're probably about

         21  60, but we are aggressively working now in Queens

         22  and in Staten Island to go after those simple ramps

         23  that are out there. So we do have a program where we

         24  allocate about $20 million dollars a year to install

         25  ramps where there are no ramps.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: If we provide

          3  you with a list of intersections where there aren't

          4  ramps, will that speed up the process?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: No,

          6  because number one, we started out doing a survey of

          7  every corner in the street.  So we have a database

          8  that has it.  Number two, when I put a contract out

          9  in a community board, I have a list, and we go out

         10  and we check the whole community board anyway right

         11  before the contractor goes out there.  The reason

         12  why is because when we go there, we actually find a

         13  lot of ramps that were installed, that weren't

         14  installed and then we find some that maybe need to

         15  be installed where we thought there were.  So prior

         16  to a contractor going into a community board, right

         17  before he begins his work, they go out and they do

         18  those initial surveys.  So providing lists to us

         19  doesn't necessarily help us because we're already go

         20  to do the survey.  That's very important for us to

         21  do that survey.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Is there

         23  anyway we can help speed the process along

         24  particularly if there is a corner where that

         25  particular let's say southwest or southeast there's
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          2  no cut at all?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          4  Council Member, let me just say this.  I think that

          5  in most cases, I think Deputy Commissioner Heyward

          6  just said 80 percent in Manhattan is about done, and

          7  I know you're probably referring to Manhattan

          8  locations. In most cases, you can give us the

          9  locations.  We'll look at them, but they're probably

         10  going to be those hard to do locations because in

         11  Manhattan we have a lot of subways.  We have a lot

         12  of drainage issues.  So we have more hard to do

         13  locations in Manhattan probably than some of the

         14  other boroughs.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: When are we

         16  going to do the hard to do locations?  This is my

         17  last question.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: We have

         19  already begun in certain boroughs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: In Manhattan.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: If I can

         22  talk about the borough of Manhattan, our goal in

         23  this coming construction season, over the winter and

         24  the next, is to go out and inspect Manhattan for

         25  those locations that are hard to do that we know so
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          2  we can identify exactly what those different

          3  components are that have to be replaced.

          4                 Then we're looking at 2009 where we

          5  can have a construction contract to actually begin

          6  to do those repairs, do those installations.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Thank

          8  you, Council Member Lappin.

          9                 Let me suggest that perhaps Council

         10  Member Lappin could provide you with a list of the

         11  key intersections in question and you could give her

         12  an idea of what the time frame is for those curb

         13  cuts to be installed.

         14                 Questions from Council Member Gerson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: By the way,

         16  thank you again very much and let me remiss.  You,

         17  Mr. Heyward, you and I have spoken on the phone so

         18  many times, and you've been so responsive, but I

         19  think this is one of the first opportunities I've

         20  had to thank you publicly for your professionalism

         21  and responsiveness when we have called.  So I want

         22  to acknowledge that for the record.

         23                 My colleagues covered I think the

         24  ground that there is to cover on Intro 73, the

         25  sidewalk repair bill.  So let me just make a comment
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          2  on that and then turn to 497.  The comment is really

          3  an appeal to all of you and to the Department.  I

          4  mean I hope I've discerned a bit of an

          5  openmindedness from the Department and to dialogue

          6  and come up with a regime that improves the current

          7  one. If the issue is the number of days, certainly

          8  we could figure that out.  My colleagues with the

          9  issue of incorporating the costs  -- there should

         10  be, maybe after an initial outlay period, no cost to

         11  the City.  If we have to change the law to capture

         12  all of the costs in what we allocate to the property

         13  owner who is in violation, we could figure that out

         14  I'm sure.

         15                 Let me just add another point perhaps

         16  to think about.  The purpose of the bill, the prime

         17  purpose, was to get at those difficult and hazardous

         18  situations, and if it helps the Department carry out

         19  its responsibilities to better define those sidewalk

         20  conditions that require immediate attention then

         21  maybe we should consider that approach as well.  I

         22  mean to put the human face on the sidewalk if you

         23  will, I have seen folks in wheelchairs reel in pain

         24  because as they were wheeled over a crack or a

         25  crevice, which to those of us not in wheelchairs you
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          2  know we barely notice, but for them in the chair it

          3  sends a shockwave through their body.  I'm talking

          4  about a crack and a crevice which should not be

          5  there.  I have seen and I've heard of people falling

          6  and tripping and breaking bones and incurring other

          7  serious injuries because they tripped over something

          8  that should not have been in the sidewalk.  So those

          9  are the situations that we want to correct quickly.

         10                 As a City, we should not accept a

         11  standard which requires, in some instances, when you

         12  have a property owner not living up to their

         13  responsibility, folks to wait years.  In Manhattan,

         14  there are ten community boards.  If you do two or

         15  three a year only, that means there are these

         16  potential situations which subsist for an

         17  unacceptable period of time.

         18                 So I'm appealing to you.  Let's do

         19  better by New Yorkers.  Let's improve on your good

         20  efforts.  I supported the bill which passed on the

         21  liability to property owners.  We don't want to go

         22  back on that, but where a few  --  and I think most

         23  property owners are responsible, but where you have

         24  some irresponsible ones, we as a City must intervene

         25  and ought not to subject pedestrians to the type of
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          2  pain and danger which I described.  So I hope from

          3  this hearing we'll enter into a dialogue to figure

          4  it out.

          5                 Turning to 497, for the benefit of my

          6  colleagues who were fortunate enough not to have

          7  been here for my opening statement, I'm just going

          8  to reiterate one small part of that opening

          9  statement if you will.  That is what too many New

         10  Yorkers endure at midnight, 1 a.m., 2 a.m., 3 a.m.,

         11  4 a.m., when they're trying to sleep, or trying to

         12  do whatever it is they're doing  -- let me go

         13  forward.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We don't need to

         15  have ratings for this kind of hearing here.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: There you go.

         17  That's why we enjoy your hearings so much, Chair

         18  Liu, one of the reasons.

         19                 When we last held a hearing on this

         20  topic then Council Member Eva Moskowitz made the

         21  point that she had received a call from one of her

         22  constituents complaining about an explosion that

         23  took place in the district.  Upon an investigation,

         24  she found that what the constituent thought was an

         25  explosion was a loose metal plate that was
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          2  generating that noise.  As you may recall, she was

          3  the prime sponsor of a bill also on this topic which

          4  497 builds on.

          5                 I appreciate you've improved, you've

          6  increased the fines since then and there are

          7  technical specifications, but the -  You don't

          8  disagree that the problem still exists, do you?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         10  Again, we certainly receive complaints, but the

         11  action we're able to take against the complaints now

         12  are larger.  We continually go out if we get a

         13  complaint today, our HIQA inspector is out there.

         14  We issue a summons if it's a loose plate.  We issue

         15  the summons today. We'll go back tomorrow.  We'll

         16  reinspect.  If it's still loose, again, we summons,

         17  and we will continue to do that until the utility

         18  company and/or City agency that's responsible for it

         19  maintains it and ramps it and pins it correctly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So in 2006,

         21  how many metal plate summonses has DOT issues?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry.  You have

         23  to please speak into the mic so that it can be

         24  properly recorded for the transcript, and identify

         25  yourself for the record.
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          2                 MR. MANISCALCO: Hi.  My name is

          3  Vincent Maniscalco. I have the fiscal year numbers.

          4  For Fiscal 2007, we issued 787 summonses for failure

          5  to pin and ramp steel plates.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: 787 Citywide,

          7  and how many since that, as the Commissioner just

          8  testified, would include presumably a repeat

          9  issuance on the same plate?  Do you know how many

         10  different metal plate locations that covers?

         11                 MR. MANISCALCO: We don't, not on

         12  these stats.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  Do you

         14  keep that information that you could get to me after

         15  this hearing?

         16                 MR. MANISCALCO: We could probably get

         17  a download from ECB based on locations for where we

         18  issued these summonses, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         20  Actually, I would appreciate that.

         21                 MR. MANISCALCO: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, if

         23  I could make that request.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's noted.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Do you have
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          2  statistics or record as to how long after the

          3  issuance of a summonses it took for the condition to

          4  be corrected?

          5                 MR. MANISCALCO: Currently, no, but I

          6  will say this, Council Member, as soon as we get a

          7  complaint, the inspector is dispatched to that

          8  location.  If the plate is shifting, yes, the

          9  summons is issued, but we also call the utility

         10  companies or the plumbers.  Everyone is required to

         11  give us a 24/7 number.  So we have called someone,

         12  and I have cases where we had inspectors wait until

         13  a contractor would show up.  I will not let an

         14  inspector leave if these is unsafe condition.  As

         15  far as the stats, I do not have the stats.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You don't have

         17  the stats with you or maintain  --

         18                 MR. MANISCALCO: We do not keep those

         19  stats.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think given

         21  the level of concern of the City, that might be a

         22  good statistic and record to begin to keep.

         23                 Let me ask you this.  You referred to

         24  unsafe conditions, and I absolutely concur that our

         25  first priority has to be correct the unsafe
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          2  conditions, but there could be many situations where

          3  you have the noise because a plate is loose or not

          4  properly installed, but is not unsafe to the point

          5  that it's in eminent danger of sliding or moving

          6  away.  Is that correct?

          7                 MR. MANISCALCO: That's correct.  A

          8  plate could be secured, it could be spiked, it could

          9  be ramped, but still you will have the deflection

         10  and the noise.  The first order of business for the

         11  inspector is the safety issue.  That's what we will

         12  look at.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you

         14  should, but the point is after that, we need to take

         15  care of the noise issue which is, as I said in my

         16  statement, both a livability and a health issue.

         17                 So let me ask you this, let's go

         18  through  --  I'm sorry.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I

         20  just wanted to respond to that, and that is that if

         21  the plate is secured, pinned, ramped properly, and

         22  there is the complaint that it's noisy, we do refer

         23  that to DEP to go out and access whether or not

         24  there is the level of noise it's inflicting on to

         25  the constituents.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Wait a minute.

          3    Actually, we need to consider that.  When you say

          4  secured, pinned properly, in most situations if a

          5  plate is secured and pinned properly, it will not

          6  make the terrible noise that presents the

          7  impingement of which I spoke.  Do you agree with

          8  that?

          9                 MR. MANISCALCO: In most cases, but it

         10  still  -- Keep in mind what the plate  --  The plate

         11  is covering an excavation.  It's going to bounce and

         12  the noise is going to deflect up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But if it's

         14  properly asphalted so there's the ramp and it's the

         15  proper size so it extends beyond the excavation and

         16  it's properly pinned underneath, there should not be

         17  normally the type of noise situation that would lead

         18  to a complaint.  Is that not correct?

         19                 MR. MANISCALCO: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Maybe I didn't

         21  phrase it right.  That is correct?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         23  That is correct.

         24                 MR. MANISCALCO: That's right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So let me ask
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          2  you this then --  just going through the parsing

          3  which you did of the bill in your testimony  --

          4  currently, does DOT have a requirement that the

          5  excavation must be filled in and the metal plating

          6  removed within a specified period of time after the

          7  completion of the rest of the job?

          8                 MR. MANISCALCO: Once the permit

          9  expires and the work is completed, the plates must

         10  be removed and the holes that the spikes were in

         11  must be filled in.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Now you said

         13  once the permit expires  --

         14                 MR. MANISCALCO:  --  The work is

         15  completed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Don't you have

         17  sometimes utility or other work where a permit is

         18  issued for a period of time that could extend beyond

         19  the actual length of time of the work?

         20                 MR. MANISCALCO: Once the permit

         21  expires, the plates, everything should be finished.

         22  I think what you're referring to is there are times

         23  that once the work is completed the companies will

         24  just leave the plates to the side because they're

         25  going to require a second truck.  They need a boom
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          2  truck to come to lift the plates. The truck that

          3  comes first to fill the hole is a paving truck.  So

          4  you may find plates sitting on the side.  The work

          5  is completed. Why are these plates there?  We get

          6  those complaints.  We notify the utility companies,

          7  notify the plumbers, to get those plates out as

          8  quickly as possible, but the plates, the work has to

          9  be completed  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  --  As

         11  quickly as possible as determined by  --

         12                 MR. MANISCALCO:  --  Once the permit

         13  is expired.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: As quickly as

         15  possible as determined by what standard or by who?

         16                 I'm asking this because we've had

         17  situations where we've seen metal plates just lying

         18  there, just as you described and I appreciate your

         19  clarification of the situation, for weeks on end. Is

         20  that a violation under current law, under current

         21  rules?

         22                 MR. MANISCALCO: If they have a valid

         23  permit, no.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         25  Council Member, if their permit is expired, yes.  We
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          2  can issue violations then.  If their permit is not

          3  expired, no.  There is nothing that we can then do

          4  about that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: What about the

          6  situation  -- I'm sorry, sir, your name again?

          7                 MR. MANISCALCO: Vincent Maniscalco.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We've spoken

          9  also.

         10                 What about the situation that Mr.

         11  Maniscalco described where the immediate work is

         12  finished but the plates are left on the street to

         13  the side but on the street where traffic still

         14  passes over them?

         15                 MR. MANISCALCO: They will get a

         16  violation.  They will get a phone call and we will

         17  demand that those plates  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: They're

         19  subject to the same fines.

         20                 MR. MANISCALCO: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I have had

         22  situations where we have called DOT, and I've spoken

         23  with folks within your department, and we've called

         24  the utility and people have both in the utility

         25  responsible for the overall job and within DOT,
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          2  people were not readily able to identify whose

          3  plates were there because it could have been a

          4  subcontractor, because of multiple permits for the

          5  same site, because of any number of reasons and that

          6  added to the length of time.  I'm sure you know the

          7  scenario I'm referring to because I see, for the

          8  record, you're nodding your heads.

          9                 Part of the purpose of the law of

         10  requiring posting was to make sure that whenever a

         11  metal plate was put down in the street the person or

         12  the entity responsible for repair, in the event that

         13  it became loose or it made noise, was immediately

         14  available.  Has that been dealt with?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         16  Again, based on their permit, they have to give us a

         17  24/7, seven day a week number which we have, but if

         18  in your bill you would like them to post it, that

         19  would fine with us.  We have no objections to that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But also they

         21  being the entity which receives the permit?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         23  Correct, which is generally the owner of the

         24  company, the utility.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  --  The
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          2  contractor, subcontractor.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          4  Sometimes, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I've actually

          6  had situations where Con Edison has told me, for

          7  example  --  we hate to pick on Con Edison here  --

          8  but where they have told me that they don't know

          9  which subcontractor put the metal plates down at a

         10  particular location, that it would take them time to

         11  track that and find that out because of whatever

         12  system they do or do not engage.  If we went to a

         13  posting requirement, it would make sense to have

         14  direct information to you, as well as to the public,

         15  as to who put the plates and who is responsible for

         16  making the correction.  Would that make sense?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         18  Again, yes.  I think it does make sense.  I think we

         19  do get the contractor on record, whoever is taking

         20  out the permit, so if it is Con Ed or Keyspan, we're

         21  getting a contact number to reach if something is

         22  wrong at that location.  We do get that number, but

         23  I understand the subcontracting which is sometimes

         24  the case and certainly it would be better to have

         25  the subcontractors numbers.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Aside from the

          3  incentive of the fine, which is a significant

          4  incentive, and again I applaud you for increasing

          5  the fines since our last hearing.  Is there an

          6  actual administrative requirement for a time period

          7  by which it has to be repaired otherwise your   --

          8  I mean the fine is for improper installation period,

          9  but is there then a further requirement for a time

         10  period of correction of the improper repair?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: If the

         12  plate shifted, we will call the utility.  Two hours,

         13  three hours, if it goes beyond the 24- hour period,

         14  another fine will be issued.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let's say at 9

         16  o'clock p.m. you get a complaint.  The utility says

         17  well  --  I mean are they required to maintain the

         18  capability to correct the condition after normal

         19  work hours for example?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: Yes,

         21  they have crews and we've called them.  I ran into

         22  the say thing as you did.  We don't know who the

         23  subcontractor is.  That's not my problem. You're the

         24  permittee on record.  You're responsible.  You send

         25  out a crew.  Whoever your subcontractor, I don't
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          2  care.  You hired them. Get somebody out there

          3  whether or not  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Except we

          5  should care if they can't through to the right

          6  people to get the job done and so they're paying a

          7  fine, but the folks in the community are still

          8  enduring the noise.  That's why I'm saying if we had

          9  direct access and we made the folks who put the

         10  plates down in addition  --  I'm not suggesting that

         11  we reduce responsibility or liability of the main

         12  contractor, but we also have a way of directly

         13  getting at the people who put down the plates.  I

         14  mean that can only help us and help you with your

         15  enforcement efforts I would think.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         17  Yes, and I think we agree.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  So why

         19  don't we pursue that.  Let me just ask you broadly

         20  with all these things and maybe this additional

         21  change with notification which also has an attention

         22  heightening educational benefit as well and with

         23  direct access to the folks who put down the plates

         24  and maybe we need to look at even increasing the

         25  fines further, but why does the problem persist so
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          2  extensively throughout residential communities?  I

          3  mean why five or six months ago did we have on Grand

          4  Street  --   and folks from the community wanted to

          5  be here tonight but because many of those directly

          6  impacted are getting ready to celebrate a religious

          7  holiday this evening, they cannot be here, but we

          8  had  -- I'm sure they'll be here at any follow- up

          9  hearing.  We had 12 plates.  I counted them.  I was

         10  down there  --  back to back. Twelve plates and I'm

         11  sure you're familiar with the situation, and it took

         12  days.  I mean my office called Con Edison,

         13  communities called Con Edison, we called DOT.  If

         14  the mechanisms in place are sufficient, why was the

         15  problem not corrected for actually it was a few

         16  weeks.  Similarly on Fulton Street right adjacent to

         17  the Southbridge Housing complex underneath the ramp

         18  to the bridge.  So this is not bridge traffic going

         19  into the bridge.  There was I think ten plates I

         20  counted, and we had folks on the phone crying.

         21  Again, it took a long period of time, multiple days,

         22  if not multiple weeks to correct the problem and I

         23  could go on with other examples.  I'm sure my

         24  colleagues can as well.  So if we're doing

         25  everything we can do, why do we still have this
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          2  problem?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I

          4  would say that to some of these large utility

          5  companies it's just a cost of doing business for

          6  them.  Again, I think that we've increased the fines

          7  and I think we've definitely seen some

          8  responsiveness.  We have been able to get them to

          9  respond more quickly, but I also think that a lot of

         10  companies see it as a cost of doing business.  They

         11  are obviously more concerned about getting into the

         12  plate at the beginning of the day, and they're not

         13  tacking it down when they're leaving at night.  We

         14  just have to stay on them, but I think they see it

         15  as a cost of doing business.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let me

         17  conclude on this note because I think Commissioner

         18  you've identified the dual cruxes  -- I don't know

         19  if that's a word, but  --  the dual major facets of

         20  the problem.  One is the cost of doing business, and

         21  two is the fact that the installation of the metal

         22  plate is probably the last thing that gets done in

         23  the course of a work day, for obvious reasons, when

         24  folks who do the work are in a rush to get home.

         25                 So maybe following this hearing we
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          2  can again sit down and look at some ways of

          3  targeting those two aspects.  Maybe we have to

          4  increase the fines further, maybe directly

          5  penalizing the subcontractors who actually put the

          6  plates on in addition to the contractors as well as

          7  the educational informational benefit of having 24-

          8  hour direct access to the folks who put the plates

          9  in the street in addition to the permittees, and

         10  maybe as the bill requires, there be some kind of

         11  check sign- off, end of the day procedure wherein

         12  there has to be on the job someone responsible

         13  before they leave at the end of the normal work day

         14  to sign a sheet, or to sign off to verify that it

         15  has been properly installed because you have the

         16  very unsafe situations.  I think you do do a good

         17  job in correcting those, but you have the in between

         18  situation where the noise  --  and when I say unsafe

         19    --  where the plate is in danger of slipping away

         20   --  but you have the in between situation where

         21  it's done but it's not done just right.  If it's not

         22  done just right, we'll get back to my sound effects.

         23    So if there is a way to implement a culture, a

         24  check and balance, a sign off as well as increase

         25  penalties to those who actually implement it to make
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          2  sure it's done just right so we're cognizant of the

          3  noise issue that I assure improves significantly the

          4  livability of many, many New Yorkers.  So can we

          5  just get together after this hearing to talk about

          6  this further?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          8  Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Gerson.

         13                 Questions from Council Member

         14  Ignizio, and we've been joined by Council Member

         15  Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chairman.  Let me also first begin by

         18  thanking Commissioner Leon Heyward as well as Irv

         19  Loewenstein, people who worked with us for many

         20  years when I staff member out here.

         21                 I somewhat disagree in terms of the

         22  sidewalks with the Committee in that I want DOT out

         23  of the private sidewalk laying business, and I think

         24  the way to do that is almost can be achieved

         25  similarly with some of the comments made here.  One
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          2  of them being make sure that there's an incentive

          3  behind homeowners or commercial establishment owners

          4  that have cracked sidewalks, that have sidewalks in

          5  disrepair, don't have sidewalks at all replace their

          6  sidewalks privately as they should, or if the City

          7  were to or had to come in it would be so penalized

          8  that the message would get around town of look you

          9  better get this done because in 180 days or whatever

         10  the date is, 250 days, 360 days, whatever the

         11  legislation and/or the agencies can agree on, the

         12  cost of the City coming in to do this is so

         13  ridiculous that you're going to go out and do it on

         14  your own.  That's what I think is sound public

         15  policy to encourage private homeowners, private

         16  landowners to go out and live up to their

         17  responsibility for living in the City of New York

         18  and that be putting down your sidewalk.  If you

         19  choose to ignore that rule, you choose to ignore

         20  that law, well then you're going to pay the price to

         21  do so.

         22                 The problem that I've seen over the

         23  11 years in public service that I've been here is

         24  that people say well leave it alone because the City

         25  will come in and it actually ends up being cheaper
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          2  if the City does it other than a private entity.  I

          3  think we need to take away that incentive for

          4  homeowners to say you know what I'm going to take a

          5  hands off approach and incentivize someone to come

          6  in and fulfill their responsibility.

          7                 That's a statement.  My question is

          8  the problem that I have in my district, which is the

          9  district with the most park land in the  --  Staten

         10  Island has the most park land of any of the boroughs

         11    --  is Parks Department is a huge problem with

         12  regards to installing sidewalks on their own

         13  property.  In my district, in and around parks,

         14  there's no curbs, there's no sidewalks, and the

         15  problem here is how are the people supposed to have

         16  faith in government if they turn around and they see

         17  government flouting the law as well.  What is the

         18  conversation, what is the dialogue that takes place

         19  between New York City DOT and the Parks Department

         20  and perhaps a mayoral entity as this stage to tell

         21  the agency that it has to step up and do its part as

         22  well?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: One of

         24  the things that we point in the testimony is that

         25  over the past few years we have begun to focus in on
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          2  City properties, and if we take Parks as an example,

          3  during that time, we've installed and repaired

          4  sidewalks around 138 parks.  I mean that's not a big

          5  number if you look, but we've spent over $12 million

          6  dollars over the past few years to fix and install

          7  sidewalks around parks.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: But is the

          9  dialogue easier now than it's been?  Because in

         10  years past, if you remember, past Commissioner, who

         11  is a friend of mine by the way, but if there was God

         12  forbid a shrub in the way the public benefit towards

         13  having a sidewalk was secondary to the fact of

         14  moving a shrub and a park which may have 3,000

         15  acres.  That was a big problem, and there were

         16  sidewalks being designed that went around

         17  situations.  I know you know what I'm talking about.

         18    Has that dialogue given way towards proper sound

         19  public policy?

         20                 That's my statement, proper sound

         21  public policy. Has that dialogue given way to a

         22  better dialogue?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I

         24  think that both departments are trying to work

         25  towards obviously providing safe sidewalks, and
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          2  obviously at the same time, we do want to continue

          3  to keep the City as green as possible.  I think that

          4  dialogue is happening.  What I want to say is

          5  probably each location is somewhat different in the

          6  way that we approach it, but I think that dialogue

          7  is happening and will continue to happen.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: I know that's

          9  not an easy initiative to deal agency to agency

         10  sometimes especially when their models are so

         11  different.  I will be forwarding a list of parks in

         12  my district which I've had numerous complaints of

         13  people who quite frankly are walking in the street

         14  with strollers on major blocks. Bloomingdale Road

         15  being one of them.  I know it's been noted in the

         16  past.  They're walking in the street with strollers

         17  because the Parks Department refuses to accept and

         18  allow for curbs and sidewalks on what it declares

         19  its property because of taking trees down.

         20                 So now just look at the logic of

         21  culture of government.  Here we are encouraging

         22  people that they have to do their part when the City

         23  itself isn't doing their part, and as a matter of

         24  fact, the City is telling strollers with mothers go

         25  walk in the street instead of taking down a shrub.
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          2  It's imprudent public policy.  It's public policy

          3  that ought be addressed by this Council if not the

          4  Administration itself, and I'm happy to work with

          5  you towards that end.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          8  Member Ignizio.

          9                 Finally, questions from Council

         10  Member Garodnick.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I will be

         12  brief.  I just wanted to follow- up on a couple of

         13  the questions that Council Member Gerson had on

         14  Intro 497 and the noisy plates.  I'm sorry if that's

         15  going to require  --  I won't do the sound effects,

         16  but I will attest to the fact that the plates are

         17  obviously a problem. I hear about them and hear them

         18  in my district as well.

         19                 The number that you gave for Fiscal

         20  Year '07 of 787 summonses seemed to be a relatively

         21  low number to me relative to my personal experience

         22  in the district.  I just was curious to know whether

         23  that was a number which had stayed relatively

         24  constant over time or whether that was a high year

         25  or a low year.  If you could sort of put that in the
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          2  context of the surrounding fiscal years that would

          3  be useful.

          4                 MR. MANISCALCO: Actually the number

          5  of 784 was less than Fiscal '06, but also let me

          6  point out I have here the number of 311 complaints

          7  for shifted plates for the last three fiscal years.

          8  These are complaints that come to us.  DOT, in

          9  Fiscal '05, we had 3,100 complaints for shifted

         10  plates, in Fiscal '06, 2,590, and in Fiscal '07,

         11  1,468.  So the number of complaints have dropped and

         12  also the number of summonses has dropped for shifted

         13  plates.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Do you have

         15  any sense as to why that has happened?

         16                 MR. MANISCALCO: Well first of all

         17  Fiscal '05 was right after we had the City Council

         18  hearing.  One of the main things we did was raise

         19  the fine from $400 to $1,200.  If that's not a

         20  deterrent  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So you

         22  attribute that to the fine change.

         23                 MR. MANISCALCO: Yes, absolutely.

         24  It's no longer the cost of doing business at that

         25  time from $400.  Now it's $1,200 dollars.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Got it.

          3  Okay.  So the number of complaints went down.  The

          4  Fiscal '07 number was 787 and '06  --  is was?

          5                 MR. MANISCALCO: 925

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: 925, and

          7   '05 it was?

          8                 MR. MANISCALCO: 1,060

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: 1.060.  So

         10  it relatively tracked the number of complaints is

         11  what you're saying.

         12                 MR. MANISCALCO: Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Can I just for

         14  clarification --  Is every noisy plate complaint

         15  classified as a shifted?

         16                 MR. MANISCALCO: No, different

         17  categories.  This is just for shifted plates.  Noisy

         18  is a different category.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, then

         20  can you go ahead and give us information for the

         21  noisy?

         22                 MR. MANISCALCO: I do not have the

         23  number of complaints because we do not issue

         24  summonses for noisy plates.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  --  For
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          2  noisy plates. Okay.

          3                 That was the right next question

          4  because I was looking at these numbers thinking that

          5  also seemed pretty low relative to the number of

          6  complaints that we just get in our offices on a

          7  weekly or monthly basis.  So those are complaints

          8  where somebody calls 311 and specifically they don't

          9  say it's making a lot of noise.  They say I have

         10  looked at it and it has moved.  Is that correct?

         11                 MR. MANISCALCO: They could say it's

         12  moved, it's shifted, it's making noise.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Wait.

         14  Moved, shifted or making noise?

         15                 MR. MANISCALCO: Well it all depends

         16  on how the complaint comes in.  It's either noisy or

         17  shifted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay, but

         19  how are you all able to assess or how is 311 able to

         20  assess what exactly is going out there when they get

         21  a phone call?  I mean an individual resident

         22  wouldn't necessarily know exactly the term to use in

         23  order to prompt the right action from DOT.  How do

         24  you all assess that?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:
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          2  Well, again, I think we've worked with 311 on

          3  questions and scripts to ask constituents.  So they

          4  do that, but at the same time, whether the complaint

          5  is noisy, shifted, the plate is moved, it's not

          6  ramped, we're going to go out to that location no

          7  matter what.  So that's why the number of complaints

          8  are obviously higher than the summonses because

          9  maybe some of them actually when we went to the

         10  location were actually not shifted.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Understood.

         12    So you're going out regardless.  So if somebody

         13  calls 311 anywhere in the City of New York  --  they

         14  call, they say any of those number of things, noisy,

         15  shifted, moved, I don't know what's going on, but

         16  something is happening out there with this plate on

         17  my block, you will send somebody to go and inspect.

         18                 I'm sorry.  I wasn't here for the

         19  initial testimony. I read it quickly.  Did you give

         20  a time frame?  I know you said that is was shorter

         21  than the time that was proposed in the legislation,

         22  but what was the time frame in which you would have

         23  somebody out there?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: We

         25  have staff 24/7, seven days a week on, and when the
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          2  complaint comes in within several hours, no more

          3  than three hours, we're at the location.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

          5                 The other question I had for you was

          6  about Section 211 of DOT's Rules, and the comment in

          7  the testimony that a permittee must post signs in

          8  the winter months to warn snow plow operators that

          9  there is a metal plate ahead.  Council Member Gerson

         10  and I were conferring about that.  Neither of us

         11  have had the experience of seeing those signs on

         12  City streets, and I just wanted to know if you could

         13  just say a little more about that or whether we're

         14  looking in the wrong places or what exactly this

         15  means and how often it's actually done?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: The

         17  signs actually would be an orange sign that would

         18  just say metal plate or  -- What does it say?  Raise

         19  plow.  It will say raise plow.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Raise plow

         21  is the sign. Okay.  That I've seen.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: And

         23  it's orange with black.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Yes, that

         25  I've seen, and that's the responsibility of the
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          2  permittee.  That was a yes, right?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          4  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Have you

          6  issued summonses for the failure  --

          7                 MR. MANISCALCO:  --  140 in Fiscal

          8   '07 for failure to have raised plow signs, and

          9  basically what we do is after it snows, we'll patrol

         10  the streets.  If the plates have shifted, the

         11  contractor will get a summons for not having the

         12  raise plow signs, and also for the shifted plate

         13  because by having the sign there  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: It's a

         15  double.

         16                 MR. MANISCALCO: It's a double.  You

         17  would've prevented that plate from shifting.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Have you

         19  made any changes to the fines for failure to install

         20  raise plow sign at the same time as the other fine

         21  changes?

         22                 MR. MANISCALCO: No, we haven't.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: So those

         24  remain constant?

         25                 MR. MANISCALCO: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: All right.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          5  Member Garodnick, and now we have questions from

          6  Council Member Felder.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: See I told you

         10  he would un cancel his cancellations.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That is true.

         12  I misunderstood.  I thought we were discussing bills

         13  at separate times so that it doesn't become

         14  confusing, but obviously I was the one that was

         15  confused.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There was no

         17  confusing on your part, Council Member Felder.  This

         18  Committee tries to keep up with the Department of

         19  Transportation so we are forced to multi- task.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: They won't

         21  even allow me to be confused.

         22                 Okay.  So during your testimony you

         23  sort of explained in some way why 206  --  and I

         24  didn't understand it  -- why 206 will sort of do

         25  less than what's done now in terms of the years.
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          2  You did some calculation under this bill that would

          3  require them to be responsible for five years, and

          4  just missed it.  I didn't understand.  You sort of

          5  starting explaining that although you like the idea

          6  of putting the responsibility on the people who

          7  actually are creating the problems, but my bill, or

          8  the bill that we're interested in, would defeat that

          9  purpose and somehow with the calculation of the

         10  years.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I'm

         12  going to have Joe explain it a little bit better to

         13  you.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: Good

         15  afternoon.  Joseph Cannisi, Deputy Commissioner

         16  Roadway Repair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good to see you

         18  again, Joe.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: Good to

         20  see you again, Chairman.

         21                 The reason it could be less,

         22  Councilman, is a very simple matter.  If we were to

         23  resurface a roadway in less than five years, or

         24  three years, obviously their commitment under the

         25  bill would end.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Oh, so that

          3  would mean that if we just changed the language a

          4  little bit then it wouldn't be a problem.  Right?

          5  Is that true?  In other words, if we said all

          6  earlier  --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI:  --  Or

          8  longer.  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So then in

         10  essence you like the bill, but there's some repairs

         11  that have to be made to the bill in a timely

         12  fashion.  Right?

         13                 So now let me just go through the

         14  process.  During your testimony, you went into great

         15  detail about construction companies.  You did not

         16  mention at all utility companies, the cable

         17  companies like Cablevision, Verizon, Con Ed,

         18  Keyspan, and you didn't mention the other City

         19  agencies as well.  How many of those violations have

         20  you gotten, let's say in any period?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: You're

         22  talking about cuts that have failed prematurely,

         23  right?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: Some
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          2  were guaranteed for three years and for some reason

          3  it didn't last three years so that essentially how

          4  many CAR's did we issue, or that sort of thing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I don't know

          6  what they call them.  Right.  Whatever you call

          7  them, how many did you issue?

          8                 I'll keep on talking.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         10  Actually, if he doesn't have it, we can get that to

         11  you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well let me

         13  tell you, certainly, for the record, I want that

         14  information.  I think my colleagues want that

         15  information.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: We

         17  don't have it with us today, but we will get it to

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: All right.

         20  Listen, it's nice seeing all of you, and the

         21  compliments that were accorded to all of you, you

         22  deserve that and more, but the discussion that we're

         23  having has nothing to do whether we appreciate all

         24  the work you do because we didn't call you in to

         25  thank you for that.  That you deserve, but that's
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          2  not what we're doing, and I'm just telling you that

          3  I find it a little bit disheartening, I should just

          4  say, that the vast majority of the streets in the

          5  City that I say are being pillaged by all these

          6  companies, by the utilities, account for the vast

          7  majority of the damage to the City.  Not that I in

          8  any way  -- Can you make sure that my relatives

          9  outside  --  If the Sergeant at- Arms  --  Okay.

         10  They got the message.

         11                 Anyway, the vast damage to the City's

         12  streets I'm not going to say is not coming from

         13  construction companies, but the overwhelming

         14  majority of damage is certainly coming from the

         15  utilities, from Cablevision, from Verizon, from Con

         16  Ed, Keyspan and other City agencies, and the example

         17  I gave you is not a unique example.  Those numbers

         18  are gigantic.  I'm just saying I think that when we

         19  talk about it to talk about the construction workers

         20  without really being able to talk about this I have

         21  nothing to do but beat up on you because I'm upset

         22  that I can't ask you more questions about what I

         23  wanted to talk about, but that's where I think the

         24  meat is of this issue.

         25                 Let me just continue.  There's
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          2  clearly a difference between the reporting of

          3  potholes.  Somebody calls 311 calls a pothole,

          4  there's a little hole in the street.  The damage

          5  that's done by  --  I don't want to go through it

          6  again.  We'll call them the companies or those,

          7  right?  The reporting is a very different mechanism

          8  because let's say you drive down Ocean Parkway, or

          9  somewhere else, and you suddenly notice in the

         10  street a straight line that goes on for blocks.

         11  That clearly has been done by some company or some

         12  utility, whatever else.  The average homeowner is

         13  not going to call 311 and say there's a line down

         14  six blocks on Ocean Parkway.  The nature of the

         15  reporting of the damage is not the same.  What is

         16  the mechanism of your audits of these streets? In

         17  other words, what happens on a normal day for

         18  somebody?  How do you find  --  The potholes we know

         19  that generally you don't have send somebody out

         20  because you'll usually get calls, although you may

         21  send people out.  Who goes out to check on these

         22  companies to make sure let's say in a year or in two

         23  years that the streets are where they should be or

         24  shouldn't be?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: I would
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          2  say there are a couple of ways.  One of them, we do

          3  have the crews that go out to fix potholes, but when

          4  they go out and they see conditions that are not

          5  potholes, that are trenches as you mentioned, they

          6  will take note and they will notify the borough HIQA

          7  office to go out and look at it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So can I just

          9  interrupt you for a minute, please?  So with the

         10  numbers that I assume that you don't have on you,

         11  and I mean that respectfully, I'd like to know how

         12  many of those reports you got in 2007 or  --  same

         13  period.  In other words, in the same period you got

         14  reported 4,000 potholes, how many reports did you

         15  get about streets in the City that are being

         16  decimated by these companies and these utilities and

         17  other City agencies.

         18                 I'm sorry for interrupting you.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: We

         20  actually do have the number for the failed street

         21  cuts.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Oh, good.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         24  Again, what you're describing is what we consider a

         25  street cut whether it be a plumber, a utility
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          2  company, another City agency makes a cut in our

          3  street.  The failures that we have, the complaints

          4  we have, are 3,362 for Fiscal Year 2007 City- wide.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So really you

          6  do have the number for me that I asked you for

          7  before.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: You

          9  wanted it broken down by utility company.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm sorry.

         11  That I want anyway.  I didn't think about that

         12  before, but I like that.  I want that.  I want that

         13  anyway.  That's a good one.  So how many are

         14  attributed to the  --  I'm only a CPA.  I can't

         15  figure.  How much was the number before and what's

         16  the difference?  Approximately. In other words, you

         17  talked about construction.  What was the rest?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         19  These are the couple of numbers I have for you

         20  today, street openings.  So that means the number of

         21  street openings we have experienced in Fiscal Year

         22   '07 is 132,624.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, that's not

         24  what I'm asking, but I like the number also.  I like

         25  everything today.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

          3  Then the number of cuts, utility cuts.  That's what

          4  you're referring to.  The company comes in and cuts

          5  our street, right?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, what I'm

          7  referring to is --  I'd like to know  --   during

          8  your testimony you mentioned the number of

          9  violations that were issues to construction

         10  companies for improperly fixing the streets.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: The

         12  summons issued for a failed street cut in 2007 were

         13  4, 293 City- wide.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Do you know

         15  how many of those were issues to construction

         16  companies.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: I can

         18  get you that information.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That you don't

         20  have.  In other words, when you mentioned the

         21  construction companies earlier whatever that number

         22  is.  Okay, so we'll talk about it.

         23                 I'm just saying to you that I don't

         24  know  --  Oh, you were in the middle of talking.  I

         25  apologize.  No, no.  I'm not good, but I'm finished.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HEYWARD: The

          3  other way that we find these conditions out there is

          4  that we do have HIQA inspectors in every borough,

          5  and although they come and they get an assignment,

          6  as they go to the location that they are assigned to

          7  go, they pick stuff up along the way.  Then, of

          8  course, we do get calls in about these conditions in

          9  the street.  So those three ways are how we get the

         10  bulk of the information on those cuts that are out

         11  in the street.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

         13  it, and it wound up that I'm the last one asking the

         14  questions.  So I'm sort of keeping everyone else

         15  here, or at least keeping questioning.  So I would

         16  like to have the opportunity, with the Chair's

         17  permission, to go through some of the numbers, and

         18  I'd like to go through to visit my neighborhood, or

         19  any other neighborhood that you want  --  pick

         20  randomly some streets somewhere  --

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: I

         22  would love to come to your neighborhood.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Excellent, and

         24  I'd like to see how it reflects  --  you know what I

         25  mean?  --  If the documentation reflects what's
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          2  going on.  The purpose of this is, again, not to

          3  criticize but to make things better and make sure

          4  that companies that I believe that the companies are

          5  ripping off the City and they're ripping the City

          6  streets off.

          7                 No let me just say, the other item I

          8  mentioned was about Jimmy Oddo's bill, curb to curb

          9  repaving.  So that let's assume if they dug up an x

         10  amount  --  I don't know.  I'm not an expert.  --

         11  That they should be responsible for repairing the

         12  street from the curb to the curb, not like cutting a

         13  hole in the middle of your street.  What do you

         14  think about that?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: We have

         16  one provision in our highway rules that allows for a

         17  curb- to- curb restoration. As you mentioned the

         18  case where we left and two hours later  --  We won't

         19  name the utility company, but they were there and

         20  ready and prepared to cut your roadway.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: They did.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: They

         23  did, and cut open your roadway.  Our highway rules

         24  were changed a few years ago, and if a permittee has

         25  a need to go into the roadway within the first 18
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          2  months of protection  --  because we have a five-

          3  year protection period  --  within those first 18

          4  months, depending upon location and other things

          5  that we will consider, we can require up to curb to-

          6  curb restoration and we have done so.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I like that.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: In fact,

          9  we've done actually I believe in your district on

         10  MacDonald Avenue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I like that a

         12  lot, but I want more.  I want that when they rip up

         13  the streets even after 18 months  if they're ripping

         14  up whatever you decide.  I'm not the expert a

         15  substantial part of the street, they should not be

         16  able to do one of these patch jobs.

         17                 I remember fixing the basement in my

         18  mother's house where the wood unfortunately started

         19  rotting from the moisture.  So it was easy to fix

         20  it.  You cut out, and I took a piece of linoleum.  I

         21  don't know if anyone knows what linoleum is.  It's

         22  called something else now if it exists.  But I

         23  stuffed up the hole with rocks.  I took a piece of

         24  linoleum, and I banged nails all over it, and that's

         25  what they do.  They take that space  --  I could
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          2  show you the pictures  --  and they paint a frame

          3  around it, and most of the street is being repaired

          4  without it being done fully.  So I'd like to go

          5  through that as well.

          6                 The other issue is the signage, which

          7  Councilman Gerson and Councilmen Garodnick really

          8  eluded to.  Right now, Department of Buildings

          9  mandates that when they do construction on a site,

         10  they have to hang up a sign with all the

         11  information. Who's doing the work, if in the case of

         12  an emergency, who do you call.

         13                 Now if Keyspan  --  and again, I'm

         14  not going to go through all of them.  If they're

         15  doing a major piece of work and I don't care whether

         16  it's two hours or an hour or three days, maybe it

         17  would be good idea.  I know you like legislation.

         18  If you want I'll put a bill forward, but we don't

         19  need legislation.  Believe it or not.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:

         21  Councilman, it is actually part of our permit.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Well it's not

         23  so.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO: If

         25  a contractor is at a location, they need to post a
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          2  sign with who the contractor is and  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: How big is the

          4  sign, Deputy Commissioner?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARDITO:  --

          6    The name. Depending on the project, if it's a re-

          7  construction project of a street, we do have

          8  requirements.  I can forward them to you.  It's

          9  supposed to say who the contractor is, the dates,

         10  how long the project is going to be and contact

         11  numbers.  So we do have those requirements in our

         12  Stipulations for Permit.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm delighted

         14  that you have the requirements, but when you come to

         15  my neighborhood, I will show you that if the

         16  requirements are there, which I believe you, they

         17  are not good enough because they hang up these

         18  little papers on let's say Brooklyn Union Gas, what

         19  we call Keyspan, there's a little horse, we call it,

         20  and there's a sheet of paper so that you know what's

         21  going on.  That's not good enough.  There should be

         22  something large enough for people to see because I

         23  don't think most people in the City, not that I know

         24  everything, but I certainly never realized that this

         25  is on that horse.  There should be larger signage
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          2  just to say you have a complaint, or is there a

          3  problem, a number to call anytime of the day.

          4                 Finally, I just wanted to mention

          5  that the Mayor during his State of the City Address

          6  spoke about this issue directly.  It's probably on

          7  nyc.gov.  I'm not sure, but it may be on nyc.gov.  I

          8  think this is an issue that requires a lot more

          9  talking and thinking about, and I thank the Chair

         10  very much for holding this hearing.  I look forward

         11  to having you come into my district, or any

         12  district, as soon as possible and certainly in the

         13  near future.  I thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         15  Member Felder.

         16                 We have one last set of questions

         17  from Council Member Lappin.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.  I appreciate it.  I just wanted to take this

         20  opportunity since I have the leadership of DOT here

         21  to discuss another Manhattan issue dealing with

         22  Second Avenue.  In particular, we received a

         23  constituent complaint about 54th Street and Second

         24  Avenue, and the response from the agency was because

         25  of the Second Avenue subway, there isn't going to be
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          2  repaving done on Second Avenue.  54th Street is

          3  outside of Phase I, which won't be completed until

          4  2014. I think, and I hope that the entire Second

          5  Avenue subway will happen, but we're a long way away

          6  from certainly at least Phase II. I not sure I

          7  understand why the agency would tell my office that

          8  54th Street wouldn't be repaved because of the

          9  Second Avenue subway.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: Well

         11  there are probably two parts to that issue.  Number

         12  one, obviously there's going to be a lot of

         13  construction equipment that moves up and down Second

         14  Avenue.  So any paving that gets done may be

         15  compromised in the short time.  That's the first

         16  part of it.  The second part of it is the paving

         17  that we do has to have a capital life.  It's done

         18  with expense dollars that get converted into capital

         19  dollars when the work gets completed, and to get a

         20  capital life on it, I have to make sure that nobody

         21  is going to tear up that roadway again within a

         22  prescribed period of time.  That's part of the

         23  problem.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I hear you,

         25  but that to me is not  --  I can't say to people who
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          2  live in the East 50's that we don't even have

          3  funding for all of Phase I.  Phase II would begin,

          4  in the earliest, in seven years, and we're not going

          5  to repave your street because of that.  I mean that

          6  to me is not acceptable.  I mean we could even talk

          7  about locations within the Phase I parameters where

          8  seven years is a long time for that piece, but I

          9  don't think we can tell people who live anywhere on

         10  Second Avenue that we can't repave their streets

         11  indefinitely because of this project.  We have to

         12  find a way to fix this.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: I guess

         14  we can discuss that directly, and we can revisit the

         15  decision.  The only thing is I will have to move

         16  extremely quickly because I do have a capital life

         17  that I have to get out of my roadway.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I understand,

         19  but even if next year somebody calls me and says on

         20  55th Street there's a problem.  You know the second

         21  phase may never happen.  I mean I can't tell these

         22  constituents that we're never going to repave their

         23  streets while this project is a possibility.  You

         24  know?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: We are
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          2  constrained by certain funding requirements.  I

          3  cannot put a capital  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: But there's no

          5  funding for the subway in place.  So I don't see why

          6  couldn't  --  There's no funding in the pipeline for

          7  the second phase.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: But the

          9  capital project is programmed somewhere.  If there

         10  is a capital project programmed somewhere, I can't

         11  put a resurfacing project, another capital program,

         12  in conflict with it.  It just won't be funded.  It

         13  can't be funded.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Well I mean I

         15  think we have to find a way to address this.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: We can

         17  certainly discuss the portions that are outside of

         18  that that have longer time frames on, but it gets to

         19  the same issue that Council Member Felder is

         20  concerned about is that let's just say there was a

         21  DEP project to put in a sewer and it was going to

         22  five or six years away.  I would not resurface that

         23  roadway either for the same reason.  Now that

         24  project could get unfunded and moved, and all those

         25  things happen, but as long as it's there as
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          2  placeholder, you cannot have two capital projects

          3  for the same  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: When was the

          5  last time you guys resurfaced First Avenue?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: Which

          7  portion?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: In the East

          9  50's.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CANNISI: I'd have

         11  to get the specifics on the locations.  There are

         12  certain parts that are concrete roadway and certain

         13  parts that are not, but if you'd like, I could

         14  certainly  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: We have to

         16  find a better answer to this.  Okay.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         18  Member Lappin, and I think it is an issue that we're

         19  going to have to explore because if a project is

         20  still but a pipedream, that should not be delaying

         21  any of the repaving work that we need to see on City

         22  streets.  So thank you very much.

         23                 Council Member Gerson has more

         24  questions, but he's going to defer because he's

         25  going to be meeting with you shortly.
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          2                 I want to thank you very much for

          3  what I think was a very productive meeting and

          4  discussion of repair and steady repair of our City

          5  streets, and I want to thank you for all the work

          6  that you do.  Look, we only have hearings on things

          7  that we don't think are going that well.  So that's

          8  just the nature of this kind check and balance

          9  system that we live in.  So thank you very much, and

         10  again, thank you for all the work that you do for

         11  the people of New York.

         12                 I'd like to call our next witness,

         13  Lois Rakoff from the Bleecker Area Merchant and

         14  Resident Association.

         15                 MS. RAKOFF: Hi.  Good afternoon, and

         16  thanks for this opportunity to speak about a problem

         17  that an all City problem. I've lived in Brooklyn,

         18  Staten Island and now I live in Manhattan in

         19  Greenwich Village.  Basically, in my area we have

         20  low- rise apartments and we keep our windows open.

         21  We also have outdoor cafes, coffee shops that are

         22  now sidewalk cafes, and as a resident, the metal

         23  plates continuously clang, in fact, with a rhythm,

         24  but it's like water torture.  You hear it, it drips

         25  and then it doesn't drip, and then it drips, and
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          2  then doesn't drip.  Because of the banging during

          3  the day, it's one bang after another, you kind of

          4  get immune to it, but during the night, when the

          5  traffic is less, you get irritated because you never

          6  know when it's going to bang. I'm not going to bang

          7  the table.  However, you know in this room we're

          8  immune to sound and we don't hear the traffic out

          9  there, but if we did have the windows open, we would

         10  be hearing the metal clanging, and office workers as

         11  well would not be able to do their work as

         12  efficiently because it becomes very irritating.  It

         13  gets on your nerves, it keeps you up at night, it

         14  keeps you up during the day.  In my area, we have

         15  musicians as well and night club owners that sleep

         16  during the day and they're woken up by the noise.

         17  Then when you hear the noise, you close your windows

         18  and there goes the air.

         19                 Also the metal plates are very slick

         20  during icy and rainy weather.  Bikes, bike riders,

         21  strollers, pedestrians, buses, cars  --  I drive a

         22  car.  I know I go over those metal plates that are

         23  not in place.  People trip, they fall, they slide,

         24  and then it's impossible.

         25                 The sidewalk should be fixed within
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          2  90 days.  I'm hearing that there's some negotiation

          3  here.

          4                 Greenwich Village, we have strollers,

          5  school kids, wheelchairs, shopping wagons, canes,

          6  walkers and we also have students and we have

          7  tourists.  We need the these sidewalks to be

          8  repaired.

          9                 Jessica Lappin has left, and she

         10  brought up about curb cuts, or pedestrian ramps.

         11  I'm sorry that the DOT is not here.  For years, we

         12  having been trying to fix curb cuts or pedestrian

         13  ramps.

         14                 I have DM20070160 and DM2007031012.

         15  I would like to report this.  I reported it last

         16  year and as well many of my neighbors called it in

         17  to 311 for years, and it has not been fixed.

         18                 I'm a teacher and I heard this was

         19  just an issue that I heard that the more complicated

         20  curb cuts get fixed later. As a teacher for

         21  successful students, and as a mother of a very

         22  successful student son, you don't do the complicated

         23  things last because you're too tired, you can't fix

         24  it, you can't plan and then it never gets done.  If

         25  you do your easy homework first, it's good, it's
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          2  fast, it's quick, and then your other homework never

          3  gets done.  You have to apply this to the more

          4  complicated curb cuts and sidewalks and other

          5  things.  You plan it, you implement it, you fix it.

          6  The easy ones, that's a no brainer, but the hard

          7  ones, they never get done and that's what I'm

          8  thinking that's happening to these curb cuts in my

          9  area on Bleecker Street.  They're never going to get

         10  done because they are complicated.  Well if it's

         11  complicated, we have these people in DOT and you in

         12  the City Council are the brain power.  You can

         13  definitely get this done, and you need more

         14  planning.

         15                 Thanks for this.  I'd like to tell

         16  you that I did not know that I was going to be

         17  speaking as much as I am.  Thank you.  Have a nice

         18  day.  I hope things go well, and thanks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well thank you very

         20  much for participating in today's hearing, and the

         21  issue of the metal plates and the condition of our

         22  streets is definitely a priority.

         23                 I'm sorry.  We have questions for you

         24  from Council Member Alan Gerson.

         25                 MS. RAKOFF: For me?  All right.

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Actually, a

          3  brief comment and then a brief question.  I'd be

          4  remiss, Mr. Chair, if I did not note that Ms. Rakoff

          5  also serves on Manhattan's Community Board 2, and

          6  she truly is an outstanding civic leader for our

          7  neighborhood which is much better off as a result of

          8  her efforts.  So we thank you.

          9                 On the issue of the sidewalk, in the

         10  area which your association serves, have you

         11  observed sidewalk problems that rise to the level of

         12  hazards, problems especially for those with extra

         13  challenges that do not get fixed within a reasonable

         14  period of time?

         15                 MS. RAKOFF: Yes, 143 Bleecker Street.

         16    It's in front of 143.  It's not 143 Bleecker

         17  Street.  The curb cuts on Bleecker. We have it near

         18  CVS.  I'll give you the very specifics.  It's on the

         19  south side of Bleecker Street and it's the west

         20  south side, and then we have one near the Red Lion,

         21  not because of the Red Lion. The curb cut is

         22  terrible and it is a sewage problem as well.  I was

         23  listening to this thing.  It is a sewage problem

         24  because we have a big puddle now and it doesn't  --

         25  The hump that the DOT put there at the curb cut  --
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          2  so the water that has puddled doesn't go into the

          3  sewer, and so now we have a big problem of flooding.

          4    That's on the north east side of Bleecker Street.

          5  That's both on Bleecker and Thompson Street.

          6                 And what else?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The metal

          8  plates.

          9                 MS. RAKOFF: The metal plates on

         10  particularly on Houston Street.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And they don't

         12  get fixed very quickly, do they?

         13                 MS. RAKOFF: No, they don't get fixed.

         14    You know I'm listening to this.  They don't get

         15  fixed.  I hear they get reported, they get cited or

         16  summoned.  Maybe they pay their fee or fine, but I

         17  didn't hear about when it gets fixed.  I didn't get

         18  that end of that process of when it will be done.

         19  Am I hearing correctly?  There were no statistics,

         20  or numbers, or months of when it gets done.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think you

         22  heard all too correctly.

         23                 MS. RAKOFF: I hear the process.

         24  Also, about that signage about publicly giving

         25  notice of  --  This would empower the people, the
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          2  residents because 311 is great, but now I'm hearing

          3  it doesn't work.  However, it does work, and now if

          4  you add that signage, when the contractor sees his

          5  or her name there, they will take more

          6  responsibility because there's an anonymity when you

          7  don't know who is fixing it.  They say no one is

          8  going to find us. But your name will be perpetuated

          9  as a good reputation or not as a good reputation and

         10  therefore the citizens or the residents, we can call

         11  and that will help the process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you and

         13  your organization certainly know how to call.

         14                 MS. RAKOFF: We certainly know how to

         15  call, and we know how to write.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That's a very

         17  good point.

         18                 MS. RAKOFF: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Community

         20  empowerment with information.  Thank you very much,

         21  Ms. Rakoff.

         22                 MS. RAKOFF: You're welcome.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Gerson and thank you, Ms. Rakoff.

          3                 MS. RAKOFF: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There being no other

          5  testimony, this hearing of the City Council's

          6  Committee on Transportation is adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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